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Monmouth County Vocational School District

Timothy M. McCorkell Antheny Schaible
Superintendent 4000 Kozloski Road Assistant Superintendent
PO Box 5033
Freehold, NJ 07728-5033 Collette C. Flatt
732-431-7944 Business Administrator
fax 732-409-6736 Board Secretary

December 19, 2012

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Monmouth County Vocational School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Monmouth County Vocational School District
(“District™) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is hereby submitted. This CAFR includes the
District’s Basic Financial Statement prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement 34. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness
and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Monmouth County Vocational School District’s Board of Education (“Board™). To the best of
our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and
is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation
of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general-
purpose financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The
statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented
on a multi-year basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the 1.S. Office of
Management and Budget (“OMB™) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations, and the state Treasury OMB Circular Letter 04-04, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants, and State Aid Pavments. Information
related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are
included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES;

Monmouth County Vocational School District is a component unit of Monmouth County within
the criteria adopted by the GASB Statement No. 14. The State Department of Education requires
the District’s financial statements be reported separately. All funds and account groups of the
District are included in this report. The Monmouth County Vocational School District’s Board
of Education and all of its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of vocational-technical educational services appropriate to
secondary students, special needs students, post-secondary students and part-time adult students
throughout the Monmouth County area.



The District completed the 2011-2012 fiscal year with a total enrollment of 4,894 students. The
following details the breakdown of the enrollment:

2011-2012 MCVSD ENROLLMENT

High School Programs

Shared Time
Vocational Programs 699
Career Center 500
Full Time
Academy of Allied Health & Science 276
Biotechnology High School 311
CLASS Academy 69
Communications High School 320
High Technology High School 278
KIVA High School 36
Marine Academy of Science & Technology 292
Total High School 2,781
Adult Programs
Evening School 925
Practical Nursing 53
Post Graduates 33
Post Secondary (Full Time) 117
Adult Basic Education Program 105
Total Adult Programs 1,233
Specialty Programs
Pre-Vocational Evaluation (Career Center) 450
Summer School - Vocational 52
Summer School — Career Academies 256
Registered Apprentices 122
Total Specialty Programs 880
GRAND TOTAL 4,894



2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK:

Monmouth County is located 47 miles south of New York City in Central New Jersey. It is 472
square miles. Its western borders are Mercer and Middlesex counties; on the south by Burlington
and Ocean counties; on the east by the Atlantic Ocean; and on the north by the Raritan and Sandy
Hook bays. The county is located within the New York City metropolitan region, which consists
of southern Connecticut and New York State and Northeastern New Jersey.

Monmouth County is a desirable area to live in because of its easy access to all major modes of
transportation. It is sandwiched between the major cities of New York City and Philadelphia.
The beauty and diversity of the region are beyond compare, and of course the excellent school
districts.

The leading trends that are evolving in Monmouth County in areas of income, employment,
education and mobility are the following:

The median household income is based on the income distribution of all households, including
those with no income. In Monmouth County, the median household income decreased from
$82,503 in 2008 to $82,265 in 2011.

The recession has affected Monmouth County’s unemployment rate from a five-year low in 2007
of 3.7 percent to an estimated high in 2011 of 10.9 percent.

Industrial markets are analyzed by the availability and leasing rate of industrial space.
Monmouth County’s total supply of leasable industrial space is limited, however for the fourth
quarter 2009, CB Richard Ellis reported vacancies here were the second lowest reported in the
twelve-market Central Jersey region; and the asking rent price was the highest within this study
area.

The population of Monmouth County according to the 2010 census was estimated to be 631,020
people for 2011. The ratio of male to female persons is almost equal. Most of the population
lives in owner occupied residence, and 85.1% of the population is white, 7.7% is black, and 5%
is Asian. Other races make up the remaining population. Approximately 9.9% of the population
identify themselves as Hispanic or Latino.

According to the 2008 American Community Survey, in Monmouth County almost 92% of our
population over 25 years old, have obtained a high school degree or higher. In 2012, all five of
the Monmouth County Vocational School District Career Academies were recognized in the
U.S. News and World Report's list of “America’s Best High Schools™.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:
The following major initiatives took place during the 2011-2012 school year:

Old roofs were replaced with new roofs at Kiva High School and at our Culinary Education
Center. We began to expand the parking lot at Communications High School, after having
purchased adjacent property. The expansion included renovations to a storage garage on site.
All of the windows and doors in our buildings have been numbered for emergency personnel to
respond more quickly to comply with a directive issued by the Monmouth County Prosecutor.

We continue to implement the Long Range Facilities Plan.
The Monmouth County Vocational School District has formed innovative partnerships with

neighboring districts and the County to share services in an effort to work together and reduce
costs. These services include snow removal and food service agreements.



4, INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP™). The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

a} The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
b) The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to guarantee compliance with
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also
subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to the federal and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws
and regulations,

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget. This budget is adopted for the General Fund, and the Special
Revenue Fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for
in the Capital Projects Fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected
in the financial section.

An encumbrance account system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line-
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-
appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are
reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2012.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect
generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB™). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of
funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in Note 1 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END:
As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in Note 2
of the Notes to the Financial Statements. The District uses public depositories protected from
loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”).
GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with
a failed banking institution in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the

Act.




9. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance including, but not limited to, general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, employee benefits liability, nurses’
professional liability, workers® compensation, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, board legal liability, student accident and fidelity bonds for the Treasurer and the Board
Secretary/Business Administrator.

10. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit — State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants and public school accountants. The Board selected Gerard Stankiewicz, CPA, PSA
of the accounting firm of Samuel Klein and Company, CPAs. In addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of
the Single Audit Act, the related OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 04-
04. The auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial statements and combining and
individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The
auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of
this report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Monmouth County Vocational
School District’s Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the
citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support to the
development and maintenance of our financial operation.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff,

Respectfully submitted,

Nty /i“ﬁftw } b{~

Mr. Timothy M. McCorkell Ms. Collette C. Flati—
Superintendent Business Administrator
Board Secretary
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iINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Monmouth County Vacational School District
County of Monmouth
Freehold, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business type activities each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of
Education of the Monmouth County Vocational Schaol District (2 component unit of the County of
Monmouth), County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012
which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Education of the Monmouth County
Vocational School District's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to firancial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business type activities each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Monmouth County
Vocational Schoaol District {2 component unit of the County of Monmouth}, as of June 308, 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows where applicable, thereof, for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com

-9-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 19, 2012, on our consideration of the Board of Education of the Monmouth County Vocational
School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control aver financial reporting and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 11
through 15 and 46 through 55 are not a required part of the financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express ne opinion on it

Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Monmouth County Vocational School District Board of Education’s financial
statements. The accompanying introductory section, other supplementary information such as the
combining fund and individual financial fund statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in the relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical tables
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion an them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey
OMB's Circular Letter 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

/‘U S o

Gerard Stankiewicz
Cemf ed Public Accountant
ic Scheol Accountnt #912

Freehold, New Jersey
December 19, 2012

-10 -



REQUIRED SUPPLENMENTARY INFORMATION -~ PART |



Monmouth County Vocational School District
Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Monmouth County Vocational
School District’s Board of Education provides an overview of the School Board’s financial
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, It should be read in conjunction with the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report’s (CAFR) Letter of Transmittal which is found in the
Introductory Section, and the School Board’s financial statements found in the Financial Section
and the notes thereto.

The MD&A is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — “Basic Financial Statement-and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments” issued in June 1999,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key financial highlights for the 2011-12 fiscal year include the following:

As reported in the Statement of Activities in section A-2 the cost of all of the School
Board’s governmental and business-type activities this year, including a charge for
depreciation of $3,577,113 was $43,462,584. Of this amount, $355,460 was paid through
various operating grants, contributions and charges for services. Consequently, the net
expense of 343,107,124 after taking into consideration these fees and subsidies, was paid
by the County of Monmouth (county contributions and contributed capital), the State of
New Jersey (state education aid and entitlement grants), restricted Federal aid, other
LEA’s (tuition), and from other miscellaneous revenue (interest, inkind fees and fund
transfers).

Table 1, below, takes the information from the Statement of Activitics and rearranges it
slightly in order to reflect comparative total revenues and expenditures for the past two
(2) years.

-11 -



Table 1

Comparative Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Revenues

General Revenues:
County Contribution

State Aid

Federa] Aid
Miscellaneous Income

Tuiticn

County of Monmouth - Contributed Capital
Business Activities
Total Revenues

Functions/Program Expenses

Instruction:

Regular Vocational Programs
Special Vocational Programs
Support services:
Student and Instruction Related Services
School Administrative Services
Other Administrative Services
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Unallocated Benefits
Special Schools
Unallocated Depreciation
Business-type Activities:
Food Service
County Depariment of Corrections
Total Expenses

District-Wide Expenses

Net Change

Less: Other Non-Recurring Adjustments
Capital Assets, Retired
Capital Assets, Adjustment
Long Term Debt, Opening Adjusiment
Transfer to Contractor Retainage Payable
Change in Net Assets (A-2)

Refer to exhibits contained in other sections of the CAFR for

behalf payments for TPAF pension, medical and FICA.

-12 -

2011-2012 2010-2011
16,662,178  § 16,662,178
11,040,102 10,033,900

1,220,239 1,312,045
2,130,849 2,369,353
11,856,348 12,359,675
1,530,865 2,743,232
31,050 36,010
44,471,631 § 45516393
247,172 § 407,408
16,347,871 16,638,136
2,671,865 3,424,583
2,212,480 2,248,036
1,707,042 1,036,928
4,709,288 5,122,373
84,869 73,291
9,805,989 9,410,652
1,972,777 1,935,280
1,577,113 2,105,051
126,118 108,718
6,315
43,462,584 $ 42,516,771
43,462,584 42,516,771
1,009,047 § 2,999,622
. (1,131,284)
12,114,041 935,165
. (481,223)
- (64.786)
13,123,088 § 2257494

clarification. State Aid includes on



USING THE ANNUAL REPORT

The School Board’s annual report consists of a series of financial statements that show
information for the School Board as a whole, its funds, and its fiduciary responsibilities. The
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities
of the School Board as a whole and present a longer-term view of the School Board’s finances.
For the School Board’s governmental activities, the financial statements tell how the School
Board financed its services in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
statements also may give the reader some insights into the School Board’s overall financial
health. Fund financial statements also report the School Board’s operations in more detail than
the government-wide financial statements by providing information about the School Board’s
most significant funds, such as the School Board’s General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and
Capital Project Fund. The remaining statement, Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets, presents
financial information about activities for which the School Board acts solely as an agent for the
benefit of employees and students.

The School Board’s auditor has provided assurance in his independent auditor’s report, located
immediately preceding this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial
Statements are fairly presented. A user of this report should read the independent auditor’s report
carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being provided for each of the other parts of the
Financial Section,

The School Board prepared the Introductory Section and the Statistical Section without
association by the independent auditors. Accordingly, the School Board assumes full
responsibility for the accuracy of these sections.

THE SCHOOL BOARD'’S FUNDS

The School Board uses funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. The Fund’s
basic financial statements allows the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and
accountability for resources received from the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey and
other entities. These statements also allow the reader to obtain more insight into the financial
workings of the School Board, and assess further the School Board's overall financial health,

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 it reported a combined net
asset balance of $80,2%0,133. The Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue and Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities presents the
reader with a detailed explanation of the differences between the net change in fund balances and

changes in net assets.

The School Board’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting
for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.
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Over the course of the year, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take into
consideration unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board’s original and final budget compared with actual operating
results is provided in the section of the CAFR, entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The
School Board generally expended less than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it
practices conservative budgetary practices in which revenues are forecast very conservatively and
expenditures are budgeted with worst-case scenarios in mind.

Of the 2011-12 closing fund balance of $8,762,801 $908,071 is restricted as a capital reserve,
$515,933 is committed for year-end encumbrances, $1,246,387 is assigned-designated for the
subsequent year’s budget $1,900,000 is restricted for maintenance reserve, $1,359,545 is reserve
for excess surplus (11-12), $661,030 is excess surplus {10-11} designated for subsequent year
expenditures and $2,171,835 is unassigned which is within the limits permitted by law.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2012, the School Board had approximately $116.9 million invested in a broad range
of capital assets, including land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, computers, instructional equipment
and other equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

For the 2011-12 school year, the School Board was able to sustain its general fund budget
through the county contribution (via the county regular tax levy), state education aid, tuition, and
local revenue sources. This was accomplished through tightened spending. State Aid makes up
approximately 27.03% of the general fund revenue, growing slightly from 24.27% last year. The
remaining revenue is comprised of 39.77% county tax levy, 28.30% from tuition from other
LEA’s and 4.90% is from miscellanecus revenue, which among other things includes adult and
post secondary tuition and bank interest.

The $315,912 deficit in unrestricted net assets for all governmental activities represents the
accumulated results of all past years® operations. It means that if the School Board had to pay off
all bills today, including all of the School Board’s noncurrent liabilities (early retirement
obligation and compensated absences), the School Board would have a deficit of $315,912.
There is no likelihood that all $5.7 million in liabilities for compensated absences and early
retirement obligations would come due in one year. The district also has $908,071 in capital
reserve monies as well as the fair market value of the capital assets.

At this time, the most important factor affecting the budget is the combined effects of the national
and State economies and the State aid formula. The tax levy and tuition will be the areas that will
need to absorb any increase in budget obligations. The effect of any decrease in future funding or
enrollments may negatively impact revenue. The School Board anticipates maintaining the
current level of enrollment for the 2012-13 fiscal year, but due to the elective nature of its
programs the School Board cannot accurately forecast future enrollment.
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CONTACTING THE SCHOOL BOARD’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The School Board’s financial report is designed to provide citizen groups, taxpayers, parents,
students, other local officials, and investors and creditors with a general overview of the School
Board’s finances and to show the School Board’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or wish to request additional financial information, contact
Collette C. Flatt, School Business Administrator, 4000 Kozleski Road, P.O. Box 5033, Freehold,

NJ, 07728-5033, (732) 431-7944.

o : ¢ -
H' i1 fff e R S
. ,{;&LQTCC@;\ZQ@ f‘/
Timothy M. McCorkell Cadllette C. Flatt ™™
Superintendent Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOQUTH)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables - Net
Interfunds Receivable
Restricted Assets:

Cash - Capital Reserve Account
Capital Asssts, Net

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Interfunds Payable
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
General Long-Term Debt;

Due Within One Year

Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

invested in Capital Assets - Net of Related Debt

Capital Projects

Restricted

Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Exhibit A-1

Governmernital Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
6,378,930.48 3 56,101.96 6,435,032.44
1,483,653.83 807.00 1,484,460.83
11,446.54 2,985.18 14,431.72
808,070.79 908,070.79
76,794,892.72 419,817.85 77.214,710.57
8557699436 $  479,711.89 86,066,706.35
2,985.18 2,985.18
5,152.85 5,152.85
11.162.61 11,162.61
565,523.00 565,523.00
5,181,769.00 5,181,768.00
5,766,592.64 5,766,592.64
76,794892.72 §  419,817.85 77,214710.57
908,070.79 908,070.79
1,807,418.00 1,807,418.00
515,932.48 515,832.46
{315,812.25) 59,894.14 (256,018.11)
79,810401.72 $  478,711.99 80,290,113.71

See accompanying notes te financial statements.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
Instruction:
Regular
Vocational Education
Suppert Services:

Student and Instruction Related Services

Other Administrative Services
Schoal Administrative Services

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportaticn
Special Schools
Unallocated Benefits
Unallocated Depreciation

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Typa Aclivitias:
Food Service

Tolal Businass-Type Aclivilies

Total Primary Government

BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH}

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Exhibit A-2

Nel (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nej Assets

Operating
Chargas for Grants and Gavernmentat Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Tolal
3 247,171.63 $ 23B,046.53 5 {8,125.10) 5 {9,125.10}
16,347, 870.89 {16,347,870.89) (16,347 B70.89)
2,671,865.18 5%,822.38 (2,612,042.80) (2,612,042,80)
2,212,480.37 (2,212,480.37) (2,212,480.37)
1,707,042.48 {1,707,042,48) (1,707,042.48)
4,709,287 .57 {4,708,287.57) (4,709,287 57)
84,869,02 (84,869.02) (84,869.02)
1,872,776.73 (1,972,776.73) (1,972,776.73)
9,805,989.74 26,541.00 (9,779,448.74) (9,779,448.74)
3,577,112.83 (3.577,112.83) (3,577,112,83)
$ 43,336,466.44 5 32440081 § (43.012,056.53) 3 {43,012,056.53)
5 126,117.82 $ 12,474.28 § 18,576.04 $_ (95087.49) S (95,067.49)
5 126,117.82 5 1247423 5 18,576.04 5 (95,067.48) § [95,067.48}
5 4346268426 § 1247420 5 34288505 % (43,012,06653) $ (95,067.48) S (43,107,124.02)
Geperal Revenues
County Contribution:
General Purposes 3 16,662,178.00 $ 16,662,178.00
Contributed Capital 1,530,865.50 1,530,865.50
Tuition Received 11,856,348.20 11,856,348.20
Federal and Stale Aid 11,325,396.96 11,325,396.96
Misc Income 2,741,382.B4 2,741,382.84
Transfers (75,202.93) § 75,202.93
Total General Revenues 44,040 968.57 75,202.93 44,116,171.50
Excess of Revenue over Expense 5 1,02891204 §  (19.864.56) § 1,008,047.48
Fixed Assets, Net Adjustment % 91,953,611.24 5 160,4729.B2 5 12,114,041,06
Change in Net Assets § 12982,523.28 § 140,565.26 § 13,123,088.54
MNet Assets - Beginning 5 6682787844 5 3391463 § 67,167,025.17
Net Assets - Ending $ 75981040172 5 47871189 $  B0,200,113.71

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

Exhibit B-1

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Eqguivalents $ 580297586 $ 57595452 §  B,378,930.48
intergovernmentat Accounts Receivable 1,342,820.23 140,733.60 1,483,653.83
Interfunds Receivable 711,819.20 711,819.20
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 908,070.79 908,070.79
Total Assets $ B8,765786.1B % 716,6B8.12 $ 9.482,474.30
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable 3 5,152.85 § 5,152.85
Interfunds Payable 3 2,985.18 700,372,656 703,357.84
Deferred Revenue 11,162.61 11,162.61
Total Liabilities 3 298518 % 71668812 & 719,673.30
Fund Balances
Committed for Year-End Encumbrances 5 515,932 .46 3 515,932.46
Rastricted - Capital Reserve Account 908,070.79 908,070.79
Restricted - Maintenance Reserve 1,900,000.00 1,900,000.00
Reserve for Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures 661,030.94 661,030.94
Assigned - Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures 1,246,387.06 1,246,387.06
Restricted- Reserve for Excess Surplus 1,359,545.10 1,359,645.10
Unassigned 2,171,834.65 2,171,834.65
Total Fund Balances $ 8,762,801.00 3 8,762,801.00
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 878578618 $ 71668812 §  9.4B2474.30
Total Fund Balances above $ 8,762,801.00
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets (A-1) are
different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are
not reported in the governmental funds. The cost of capital assets is $116,992,565.47 and
the accumulated depreciation is $40,197 672.75. (see Note 5) 76,794,892.72
Long-term liabilities, including compensated absence are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. (see Note 6} (5,747,292.00)

Net assets of governmental activities (A-1} § 79,810,401.72
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH}

Exhibit B-2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES
Local sources:
County Contribution
Tuition Charges
Non-Resident Fees
Miscellaneous

Total - Local Sources

State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular Instruction
Vocational Education
Support Services and Undistributed Costs:
Student and Instruction Related Services
School Administrative Services
Other Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Employee Benefits
Special Schools
Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency} of Revenues
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources/{Uses):
Transfer In/(Cut)
Food Service Fund
Internal Service Fund
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - July 1

Fund Balance - June 30

Special Total

General Revenue Government

Fund Fund Funds
$ 16,662,178.00 16,662,178.00
11,699,373.20 11,699,373.20
156,975.00 156,975.00
2,054,411.47 3 76,437.00 2,130,848 47
$ 30,572,937.67 $ 76,437.00 30,649,374.67
11,025,751.96 14,350.26 11,040,102.22
298,645.00 0920,594.02 1,220,239.02
$ 41898133463 % 1,011,381.28 42,508,715.91
3 9,172.50 $ 238,046.53 247,219.03
16,351,005.64 16,351,005.64
2,612,565.14 58,822.38 2,672,377.52
2,212,904.62 2,212 ,904.62
1,707,360.81 1,707,369.81
4,710,190.59 4,710,190.59
84,885.29 84,885.29
9,779,448.74 26,541.00 9,805,980.74
1,872,776.73 1,872,776.73
58,719.00 686,971.37 745,690.37
$ 39,499,028.06 $ 1,011,381.28 40,510,408.34
$ 2,399,306.57 2,399,306.57
3 (78,906.31) (78,906.31)
3,703.38 3,703.38
$ (75,202.93) (75,202.93)
$ 2,324,103.64 2,324,103.64
6,438,697.36 6,438,697.36
% 8,762,801.00 8,762,801.00
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Exhibit B-3

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (from B-2} $ 232410364

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities
{(A-2} are different because;

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciated expense. This is the
amount by which capital cutlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Capital outlay 3 745,690.37
Depreciation expense (3,577,112.83}
Capital Contribution from County of Monmouth 1,530,865.50
Capital Assets, adjustments 12,144.041.06 10,843,484 .10

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g.

compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts earned

during the year. [n the governmental funds, however, expenditures for

these items are reported in the amount of financial rescurces used (paid).

When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is

reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds the earned

amount, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation. (204,007.00)

Revenues in the statement of activities which do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 159,507.80

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities {A-2) $ 13,123,088.54
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AND

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Board is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational
institution. The Board consists of officials appointed by the County Board of Chosen Freeholders (the
“Freeholders”) and is responsible for the fiscal conirol of the District. A superintendent is appointed
by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District. The operations of the
District include public school vocational education for secondary, post-secondary and adult students
in the County of Monmouth, New Jersey. The District also operates a Marine Academy of Science
and Technology Program, Vocational Special Education Program, a Communications High School, a
High-Tech High School and a Bio-Tech.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the District. Oversight responsibility includes
financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability to
significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. There were no additional
entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the
current fiscal year.

GASE Statement 14 established criteria to be used to determine which component units should be
included in the financial statements of the oversight entity. In accordance with this statement the
District is a component unit of the County of Monmouth; however, the financial statemenis of the
District are not reported in the County's financial statements in accordance with reporting
requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community
Affairs, State of New Jersey.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (the "Board") of the Monmouth County Vocational
School District {the "District”} have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
Beard's accounting policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
staternent of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements that provide a
rmore detailed level of financial information.

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the District as a
whole excluding fiduciary activities such as student activities. Individual funds are not
displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by state
and federal aid, tuition and county contributions, from business-type activities generally
financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external parties.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Basis of Presentation {Continued)

1.

Government-Wide Financial Statements {Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program
revenues directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the
expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functiona!l activity. Program
revenues include (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the
District's services and (2) operating grants and contributions. These revenues are subject to
externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax levies and other revenue sources
not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds,
The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Depariment”) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance with the
option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation
of all funds as major is important for public interest and fo promote consistency among district
financial reporting models.

B. Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. A fund is defined
as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

1.

Governmental Funds

The District reporis the following governmental funds:

General Fund — The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used
to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund — The District accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources {other than expendable trusts, major capital projects, enterprise or internal
service funds) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the
special revenue fund.

Capital Projects Fund — The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital faciiities {other
than those financed by proprietary funds). A county vocational school district by statute
does not raise money for capital improvements through issuance of debt (N.J.5.18A:54-

31).
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MCNMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Fund Accounting {Continued)

1.

Governmental Funds (Continued)

Debt Service Fund — The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of
resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major
property acquisition, construction and improvement programs. A county vocational
school district by statute does not raise money for capital improvements through issuance
of debt (N.J.S. 18A:54-31).

Proprietary Fund

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise Fund — The enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in which the
intent of the District is that the costs of providing goods or services to the District on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Fiduciary Funds

The District reports the following fiduciary funds:

Trust and Agency Funds — The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets
held by the District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments or on behalf
of other funds within the District.

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund — The trust fund is used to account for
assets held under the terms of a formal trust agreement. The District reimburses the
costs of unemployment benefits paid by the New Jersey Depariment of Labor.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund - The trust fund encompasses other trust fund
arrangements for which principal and income benefit individuals outside of the school
district. The District issued scholarships to students.

Agency Funds (Payroll, Student Activities Fund, Pell Grant Program, Stafford L.oan
Program and_Contractor Retainage) — Agency funds are used to account for the assets
that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

C. Measurement Focus

1.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are
included on the Statement cn Net Assets.

Fund Financial Statemenis

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources)
and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-
wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
With this measurement, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary fund-type operating
statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total
assets.

Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

D. Basis of Accounting

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating
results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and "available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilittes of the current period. State equalization monies are recognized as revenue
during the period in which they are appropriated. A one-year availability period is used for
revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are recognized in
the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest an
general long-term debt which are recorded when due.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Basis of Accounting {Continued)

Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual and under New Jersey State Statute a
municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount
voted upon or certified, prier to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy — county contribution {accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue
is both measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounis
receivable”.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor organizations issued on or before
November 30, 1989, uniess they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The District’s
proprietary funds have elected not to apply the standards issued by FASB after November 30,
1989.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and operating results of
proprietary fund types and nonexpendable frust funds. Under this method, revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and expenses are recognized when
they are incurred.

-25-



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared each year in advance for the general, special revenue,
and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted fo the county office for approval and are
voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April or subject to certain criteria
within the tax levy CAP automatically enacted without voter approval. [n the case of the District,
the budget is subject to approval by the County Board of School Estimate. Budgets are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described
later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund.
Line item accounts are defined as the lowest {most specific) level of detaill as established
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of
appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year subject
to the limitation of N.J.A.C 8A;23A-2.3 (et seq.).

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control
device during the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.
Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting
budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant
accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not Sufficient supplemental records are
maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General Fund revenue and Special Revenue Fund
revenue from the budgetary basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual — General and
Special Revenue Funds basis of accounting as presented in the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control {Continued)

Sources/inflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the

budgetary comparison schedules.

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized

as expenditures and the related revenue
recognized.

State aid payment recegnized per GAAP standards

is

in the current year previously recognized for

budgetary purposes.

The last State aid payment is recognized as

revenue for budgetary purposes and differs from GAAP
which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the State recognizes the relaled

expense (GASB 33).

Total revenues as reported on the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -

governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows”

fram the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is

placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year supplies

are received for financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -

governmental funds.

.27 -

General Fund

Special
Revenue Fund

$ 4198578983 % 1,011,381.28

None None
688,713.00 None
3 (775,168.00) None

$ 4189933463 $ 1,011,381.28

$ 3944902806 $ 1,011,381.28
None None

$ 39,44902806 $ 1,011381.28




MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHQOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED})

F. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open
encumbrances in governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as
reservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the District has received advances,
are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be
made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation refiected in the certified
budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Assets, Liahilities and Equity

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly Tiguid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or
less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial
institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible
investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public
funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.SA. 17:941 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of
governmental units. The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a
public depository unless such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories
include Savings and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks
the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having
a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance of collected public
funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it
has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount
of their deposits to the Governmental Units.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Continued)

2. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, are recorded in the enterprise
funds. All expenses in the other funds are recorded as expenditures during the year of purchase.

Inventories in the Proprietary Funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the Enterprise Fund represent payments
made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2012.

3. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered
colieciible,

4, Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs,

5. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges
for goods or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one
year.

B. Capital Assets

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets
but are not reperted in the fund financial statements.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00.
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

8. Capital Assets (Continued)

All reported capital assets except for land are depreciated. !mprovements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method under the half year convention over the following useful lives:

Asset Class Esfimated Lives
School Buildings 40 years
Building Improvements 20 years
Electrical/Plumbing 30 years
Vehicles 6-8 years
Office and Computer Equipment 5-20 years
Instructional Equipment 5-10 years
Grounds Equipment 5-15 years
Food Service Equipment 7-20 years

7. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation,
sick leave and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to
services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the District and its employees, are accounted for in the
period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire sick leave and vacation leave liabilities are reported on the government-wide financial
statements.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences
is in the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources. These amounts are
recorded in the account “compensated absences payable” in the fund from which the employees
who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not
reported.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and
liability of the fund that will pay for them.

-30-



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Continued)

8. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements.

In general, payables and accrued liahilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely mannear and in
full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the governmental funds.
However, the noncurrent portion of capital leases, compensated absences and loans payable that
will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial statements
only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable, available financial
resources.

9. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

10. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the general and special revenue fund represent program revenues that have
been received but not yet earned.

11. Fund Eguity

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from
other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent
plans for future use of financial resources.

12. Fund Balance Reserves

The School District reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources and, therefore, are
not available for appropriation or expenditure. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion
which is available for appropriation in future periods. A fund balance reserve has been
established for year end encumbrances.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHCOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Assets, Liabilities and Equity {Continued)

13. Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the School
District enterprise fund, ({the Food Service) are charges to customers for sales of food service.
QOperating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expense and depreciation on Capital Assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

14. Rebatable Arbitrage

Rebatable arbitrage results from investing the proceeds of borrowed funds either directly or
indirectly into investments that are higher in yield than the bond vyield incurred on the borrowed
funds. In accordance with GASB 34, rebatable arbitrage is treated like a claim or judgment. All
interest income is reported as revenue of the capital projects fund. The liability, if any, is
recorded as an accrued arbitrage rebate.

15. Non-Monetary Transactions

Commodities received under the Federal Food Distribution Program are received by the district
and are recorded as nonoperating revenue when received in the food service enterprise fund at
market value. The use of the commodities is included in cost of sales.

18, Allocation of Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Employee benefits, including the employer's
share of social security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were not
allocated. Depreciation expense is included in the direct expense column of the Statement of

Activities.

17. Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of management
and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither of these types of

transactions occurred during the fiscal year.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term
investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less. Cash equivalents are defined as short-
term, highly liquid securities that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near
their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest
rates, Generally, only securities with original maturities of three (3) months or less meet this
definition,

Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market. The District classifies certificates of
depaosit that have original maturity dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from
the date of purchase, as investments. The District is in compliance with GASB Statement No. 3 as
amended by GASB Statement No. 40.

A. Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in
New Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of
the United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that
exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of
collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to
100% of the amount exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve
Bank of Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York or a banking institution that is a
member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.00.

B. Investments
New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities:

= Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America. This includes instruments such as Treasury bills, notes and
bonds.

= Government money market mutual funds.
= Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress that matures

within 397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or externat factors.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. Investments (Continued)

= Bonds or other obligations of the school district or local unit of which the school district is a
part.

= Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as permitted by the Division
of investments, New Jersey State Department of Treasury.

= Local government investment pools.
= New Jersey State Cash Management Fund.
= Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities, subject to special conditions.

The District had no securities as of June 30, 2012 that would be considered investments as defined
by GASB No. 3 as amended by GASE No. 40.

C. Detaijl of Cash

As of June 30, 2012 the District had funds in interest bearing checking account totaling
$9,818,225.75.

Reconciliation by Fund:
Governmental $ 7,779,602.84
Fiduciary 2,038,622.91

$ 6,81822575

Rick Analysis — The checking accounts were on deposit in a bank which had the Government Unit
Deposit Protection Act coverage ("GUDPA") as of June 30, 2012, which minimizes credit risk.

Allocation:
Unrestricted - Net Assets $ 6,871532.05
Restricted - Net Assets 908,070.78
Restricted - Fiduciary 2,038,622.91

$ 9,81822575
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATICNAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH])
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2012 consisted of Federal source, State source,
County source and other LEA's for tuitions. All receivables are considered collectible in full. A
summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Governmental Fund Business
Financial Type
Statements Activities
General Fund
State Aid:
TPAF - FICA reimbursement L 68,875.83
Tuition from Other LEA's 1,155,164.58
County of Monmouth:
Capital Projects 93,950.78
Federal Sources:
Navy Reimbursement 24,939.04

$ 1,342,820.23

Special Revenue Fund

Federal Aid:
Title 1 Part A $ 18,331.00
Title 1l Part A 7,522.00
Carl D. Perkins Secondary 108,344.00
Carl D. Perkins Post Secondary Reserve 41.00
State Aid:
Apprenticeship Coordinator Program 3,408.60
Locak:
Other 3,087.00
$ 140,733.60
3 1,483,653.83
Proprietary Fund:
Enterprise Fund
State Source 3 11.98
Federal Scurce 795.11

% 807.09
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 390, 2012

5. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets nof being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depraciated
Capital assets being depreciated:

Building and Building Impravemenis
Machinery and Equipment
Site Improvements

Total at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Building and Building Improvemenis
Machinery and Equipment
Site Improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated,
net of accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net 5

Business-Type Activities:
Furniture, machinery and eguipment 3
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniture, machinery and eguipment

Beginning Transfers Ending
Balance Additions (Retirements) Balance
3,512,236.00 (410,230.00) § 3,102,000.00
13,057,767.42 (13,057,767.42)
16,569,997 42 (13,467,997.42) 3,102,000.00

67,145,745.00

37,771,957.38

104,917,702.38

5,505,837.52 2,402,633.86 (665,682.29) 7,242,789.09
1,112,000.00 6186,074.00 1,730,074.00
73,763,582.52 40,792,665.24 {665,682,29) 113,8080,565.47

(21,299,554.00)
(2,180,784.61)
(512,771.25)

(2,649,128.94)
(864,720.54)
(63,263.35)

12,302,740.43
295,471.43
29,238.20

(36,251,423.37)
(3,340,876.58)
(605,272.80)

(23,993,109.85)

(3,577,112.83)

12,627,450.06

(40,197 ,672.75)

48,770,472.66

37,215,5652.41

11,961,767.77

73,692,882.72

66,340,470.08 $

37,215,552.41 §

(1,506,229.65)

76,794,892.72

512,399.50 %

{205,799.98)

203,832.88

(47.211.51) §

43,403.07

716,232.39

(295,414.54)

Business type activities capital assets, net g

306,599.54 &

156,621.38 §

43,403.07 S

419,817.85

Detail of additicns
Governmental Activities:
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund
Capital Projects Fund

There were adjustments made as a result of a detailed review as of June 30, 2012 to properly present the fixed assets .
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH])
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within Long-Term
Balance Additions Retirements Balance One Year Portion
Governmental Activities:
Compensated
Absences Payable 3 5,016,472 & 5 (127,392) % 4,889,080 $ 488908 $ 4,400,172
Unfunded Pension Liability * 034,827 (76,615) 858,212 76,616 781,596
3 5,851,299 § $ {204,007} % 5747292 % 565524 $ 5,181,768

* Annual payment of $76,615.00 thraugh Aprit 1, 2021 which was a result of an early retirement program offered by
the State in 2001.

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans: All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public
Employees' Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund that have been
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems
will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity
Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF): The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was
established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement
benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers'
Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special
funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of
New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff
certified by the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who
have titles that are unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS): The Public Employees’ Retirement System
(PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide
retirement, death, disability and medical benefits fo certain qualified members. The Public
Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

7. PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions: The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S A
43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A.6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service,
except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service, Retirement benefits for age and
service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/55 of the final average salary for
each year of service credit as defined. Final average salary equals the average salary for the final
three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three years' compensation if other than the final
three years). Members may seek early retirement after achieving 26 years of service credit or they
may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to ten years of service in which case benefits
would begin the first day of the month after the member attains normal retirement age. The TPAF
and PERS provides for specified medical benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of
qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the system.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credit,
become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entifled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements: The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and, in
most retirement systems, contributions are required by active members and contribution employers.
Plan member and employer cantributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The
various pension funds provide for employee contributions based on 5.5% of employees’ annual
compensation, as defined. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in
both PERS and TPAF. The actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-
living adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in the TPAF and PERS. In the PERS and
TPAF, the employer contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical premium.

During the year ended June 30, 2012 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding
situations, the annual pension costs equals annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost
sharing multi-employer pension plan, the annual pension costs differs from the annual required
contribution due to the enactment of Chapter 114, P.L. 1997.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Pension Cost Percentage
Year Group Life Net Cost of APC
Funding Normal Accrued Insurance to District Confributed
June 30, 2012 $ 136140 § 272,281 $ 26,021 $ 434442 100%
June 30, 2011 145,392 231,673 28638 405,703 100%
June 30, 2010 119,285 153,267 37,797 310,349 100%
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL. DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

7. PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED])

Contribution Requirements {(Continued):

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid on behalf of the District)

Pension
APC Normal NCGI Post Retirement TPAF
Year Funding Cost (APC) Contributed & Accrued Premium Medical FICA
June 30,2012 $ None 100% % 574851 $ 61689 § 1279612 $ 1,3858632
June 30, 2011 None 100% None 61,433 1,304,831 1,447,467
June 30, 2010 None 100% None 67,448 1,266,773 1,511,291

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the State of New Jersey contributed $636,540 to the
TPAF for normal pension and insurance and $1,279,612 for post-retirement medical benefits on
behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A66-66 the State of New Jersey
reimbursed the District $1,385,632 during the year ended June 30, 2012 for the employer's share of
social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This amount
has been included in the basic financial statements, and the individual fund statements and
schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASE 24.

Legislation enacted during 1993 provided early retirement incentives for certain members of TPAF
and PERS who met certain age and service requirements and who applied for retirement between
certain dates in the 1994 fiscal year. The early retirement incentives included: (a) an additional five
years of service credit for employees at least age 50 with @ minimum of 25 years of service; (b) free
health benefits for employees at least 60 years old with at least 20 years of service; and (c) an
additional $500 per month for two years for employees at least age 60 with 10 but less than 20 years
of service. The Board assumed the increased cost for the early retirement as it affected their district.

8. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required TPAF and PERS,
respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees who retire after
accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the
law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It
created separate funds outside of the pension plans for funding and payment of post-retirement
medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010
there were 87,288 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits, The cost of these benefits is
funded through contributions by the State in accordance with Chapter 62, P.L. 1994. Funding of post-
retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in
fiscal year 1994 with an additional contribution beginning in fiscal year 1996 to maintain a medical
reserve of one half of 1% of the active State payroll.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, which provides free
health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $144 million toward Chapter 126
benefits for 15,709 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2011.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A CCMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave)} as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The District's
policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to
subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave
in accordance with the District's agreements with various employee unjons.

The liahility for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded in the
statement of Net Assets in the cument and long-term liabilities. The current portion of the
compensated absence balance of the governmental funds is shown separately from the long-term
liahility balance of compensated absences.

The lability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2012 no liability existed for compensated
absences in the proprietary fund types.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

IRS Code Section 403({b)

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the
entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts
deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Equitable Insurance Company T-Rowe Price
Siracusa Prudential

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PROGRAM

Description of System

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program {DCRP} was established on July 1, 2007 for certain
public employees under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007. The
program provides eligible members, with a minimum base salary of $1,500.00 or more, with a tax-
sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, in addition to life insurance and disability
coverage. The DCRP is jointly administered by the Division of Pensions and Benefits and
Prudential Financial.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

Description of System (Continuad)

If an eligible elected or appointed official will earn less than $5,000.00 annually, the official may
choose to waive participation in the DCRP for that office or position. This waiver is irrevocable.

Contributions Required and Made

Contributions made by employees for DCRP are currently 5.5% of their base wages. Member
contributions are matched by a 3.0% employer contribution.

Contributions to the plan were as follows:

Fiscal Year Employer Employee
2012 $ 6,226.32 $ 17,975.35
2011 N/A N/A
2010 N/A N/A

12. INTERGOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

In fiscal years prior to June 30, 2012 the District received various federal and state grants which were
in excess of funds required. These amounts have been reflected on the District records as follows:

Special Revenue Fund
Perkins Post Secondary - period ended June 30, 2010 3 5,152.85

13. DEFERRED REVENUE

The District's Statement of Net Assets as of June 30, 2012 reflects revenues which were received;
however, not recognized as revenue:

Special Revenue Fund

Local Grants 3 11,162.61

As detailed in the Business office.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

Property and Liability Insurance: The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the
Statistical Section of this Gomprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance: The District has elected to fund its New
Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method", Under
this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits
paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly
for amounis due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee
contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's
expendable trust fund for the current and prior two years:

Fiscal Year District interest Employee Amount Ending

Ended June 30 Contributions Earned Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2012 $ None % 13.89 §  42,084.61 3 49,012.23 $ 1,407.48
2011 None 47 .41 56,575.38 101,558.18 8,321.11
2010 None 59,87 65,030.56 59,713.03 53,256.50

Health Benefits

The District has opted for the traditional premium based health benefits plan for its employees and
the premium is paid monthly on a per employee basis.

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The interfund receivable/payable as of June 30, 2012 will be liquidated in the normal course of
business in the succeeding year.

Receivable Payable
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 711,819.20 $ 2988518
Special Revenue Fund 700,372.66
711,819.20 703,357.84
Business Type Activities:
Enterprise Fund 2,985.18
Other:
Fiduciary Funds 11,446.54
$ 714,804.38 $ 714,804.38
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

16. RESTRICTED —~ CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT
A Capital Reserve Account was established by the Board by resolution from time to time for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. During the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the District had no interest earnings for the year bringing the total
reserve to $908,070.79.

Analysis of Capital Reserve activity since Inception:

Contributions from Board

Prior to June 30, 2011 $ 3,132,402.00

During year ended June 30, 2012 None $ 3,132,402.00
Interest Earned

Pricr to June 30, 2011 $ 219,514.03

During year ended June 30, 2012 None $§ 219,514.03
Less Withdrawals:

Prior to June 30, 2011 $ 2,443,845.24

During year ended June 30, 2012 Naone $ 2,443,845.24
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 908,070.79

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved
Long Range Facilities Plan {LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes approved by the Beard of Estimate or by transfer by Board Resolution at year end,
if any, Unanticipated Revenue or Unexpended Line ltem Appropriation amounts, or both. A district
may also appropriate additional amounts with express approval by the Board of School Estimate.
Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

17. FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAMS

A. Federal Family Education Loan {F.F.E.L.) Program — Stafford

The District assisted post secondary students in obtaining Stafford Loans under the Federal
Family Education Loan Program to help defray tuition and related costs. The loans are made by
lending institutions and guaranteed by State or regional guaranty agencies and underwritten by
the Federal government. When loans are approved the proceeds are reviewed by the District
and tuition is deducted by the District and the remaining proceeds are disbursed to the student.
The receipts and disbursements relating to the Stafford Loans are reflected in the District's
agency fund and the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

17. FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAMS {CONTINUED)

B. Pell Grant Program

The District assisted post secondary students in obtaining Pell Granis {o help defray tuition and
related costs. The grants are made by the U.S. Department of Education and proceeds are
distributed directly to the District. The proceeds are reviewed by the District and tuition deducted,
if applicable. Any remaining proceeds are then disbursed to the student. The receipts and
disbursements relating to the Pell Grant Program are reflected in the District's agency fund and
the Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance.

18. FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - OFf the $8,762,801.00 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2012, $515,932.46 is
committed for year-end encumbrances; $908,070.79 is restricted for the Capital Reserve Account,
$1,800,000.00 is restricted for maintenance reserve, $2,171,834.65 is unassigned, $1,246,387.06 is
designed for subsequent year expenditures, $661,030.94 is reserve for excess surplus designated for
subsequent year's expenditures and $1,359,545.10 is excess surplus.

19. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Grant Programs - The school district participates in federal, state and locally assigned grant
programs. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives. The school district is potentially liable for expenditures which may be disallowed
pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material items
of noncompiiance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

B. Pending Litigation —~ As of the date of this report, in the opinion of the management, there was
no litigation pending of which, in the event of an adverse or unfavorable outcome, would
materially impair the financial position of the District. There were several matters pending that
are being handled by the Board's insurance carrier which should not have any adverse impact.

C. Contracts/Retainage Payable — The District has established an escrow fund for the handling of
all retainage due to the various contractors. The balance as of June 30, 2012 is $268,748.25.

D. Due from County of Monmouth — The District has incurred expenditures for its capital program
which are funded by the County of Monmouth. The District in the normal course of business
procures the services and as expenditures are incurred, reimbursement s sought and within a
reasonable period of time, the funds are received. The balance due from the County as of June
30, 2012 is $93,850.78. There are also commitments outstanding in the amount of $492,531.05
as of June 30, 2012 resulting from District authorizations during the year which ultimately will
upon properly completion be reimbursed by the county as well.
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the designation for Reserved Fund Balance —
Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve
General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subsequent years’ budget. There was excess
fund balance At June 30, 2012 of $661,030.94 as a result of the 2010-2011 school year and
$2,134,713.10 a result of 2011-2012.

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal, state, county governments and
other LEA's. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect
on the District's programs and activities.

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE ~ GENERAL FUND

The Surpluses are presented on a GAAP basis and reconciliation to the budget basis is follows:

Restricied
Reserve for

Excess Surplus

Balance on a Budget Basis on the General Fund
Budgetary Basic Comparison $ 2,134,713.10

Less: Allocation of state aid payment of not
recognized on a GAAP basis (775,168.00)

$ 1,359,545.10

SUBSEQUENT EVENT ~ IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Cn October 29-30, 2012 Hurricane/Superstorm Sandy caused significant damage to one of the
District's specialized schools of learning making it uninhabitable. The District obtained an alternate
site for a temporary operation. It is anficipated the insurance proceeds and government
reimbursements will be obtained fo minimize the impact to the District.

_45 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION — PART 1l



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



0SELI6 05eLl’d [N 00o 000 000
[ETA N 05CLIG 0ETLLG 000 000
£99tTFERE £068L RO 1T 00 ESS 091 RE [{hi] GOESC OO EE 000 00'ECE0RI'RE
00°sh9°66€ 00 SH9 66T 000 00'S¥9°66C 800 00°t+9 66L
00°5v9°66C 005+ 660 00°5¥9°66C 00'5+9° 66T
S6OL6TILE S600CTITIL 000ET66EL Qo'c 00°0E£C 6L L 000 O0'0ET66EL
G6'IE9ERET] SOIEDERE [ 000 000
OOCTIF6LTL 0OTI9aLT ] ooa 000
00°0¥5'9€9 GGOFS9E9 000 000
000 0070
00°E61° 11 00°E97°690°C O0'0LO'BSS'| 00°0L0°859°L 00'0L0°8S9'E
00°01¢'881 000LTRBI 00°01T8EI 0001z st
00°0EF"LZEF OO0EH LTE Y 00'0EF LEE T D00tk LeEt
00°0T8"STT L 0C'0ES'STTT 00°0TE el Hl A rara
LOGLCLI] LOLESTLE OE 00°8L0°19F0E 000 00'RL9 [9%0F 000 00'8BLY |5+ DS
61 EdG 0T GIEREOLD 00°000°00F 00°00¢ 00F 00'000°00F
BTRTFELT BTRTFECH | 007000708171 00°000°08T°1 00°0007051°1
00'c 000 000 000
00'£46°9] 00°EL4795] 000007013 00°000°0F1 00°000°0F1L
{08 9zL'0LE) 0L°ELE669°T1 007005 60E T 00°00£°601°C1 000057 601°C1
00'841°C9991 §  00'8L1T99701 § 00821799791 CORLITTIFGI
DANTIaNT Tty JFpng SIDJSURL ], FEETLT [EEFENTILRITE Fod iy
REVMELR | JCuEg [EHIBLIQ) aea g Jo1g [Lzettify)
1R [uulg

UM SIUGLIBA

630 197§

-2 Mgyx

ANNA TVHEANTD

CHOT 0L INAC AIANT HVIA TVISId THL 4O
TTATTHDS NOSTMVJINGD AUY1IDAnNd

(HLIOWNOW T0 AINIOD HIEL 10 HINI INANOJINGD V)
LINLLSHE TOOHDS TYNOLLVDOA ALNNOD HINONWNOW

UD$INNSU] IO - SWELBOL] JE[naay juo]
§23040Ea ], JO SHLIN[ES
UONINUISU] SO - SLITIH0L,[ IefnTay]
EopANsY]
A5UAOXT WaLNyy
SAINIpUANNY]

sanuzsAay] |t

S20IMEE [019pa] [Ho],
pun, sqor uonuanpsg
13 IUDUBSAAUIIY PUB AIDAOISY UE3LIALLY
'530IN0G {E19pa.

S30IN0Y 3)eLg MO,
SUGHNGLIUDY) ALHRIAG [RI0S [V PISINQUIY
SUDIIOGLIUOT) [E1PAA TUAAINY-1S0] IV L JIPYRG-U0
uoIsuad Jvd1 JMRq-uG0
‘PAINPNQ-UON
PRIV JUDUNSNIpY
Pry ANN235 [R3L0EI)
Py uosezijenny
PIY HonEINPS {T129dg (ERLIGEaN.)
£3210G SR

$32IM05 (20T MO,
STOIUB][IISI[A]
SSMUIASY SNOIUL[JAISIA PAIDLISY J3GI0
SPUN] 2AIDSIY §EIIOE) UG PRLTT 152IAIU]
§39,] JUBPISTY-UON
uonin],
AN XU ) AJUNO.)

5IIN0Y [2I07]
SINUAATY

- 46 -



+9°0CTR ceEsE oY 66 ELE T 667261t 009LE T IF aga 009.LE P
08’18 [Tree 16°8£0°1 16589 n0NsE 00°05€
TEFT FOOTOLL EERY AR 88'P69'E 00'05L'EL 00 05C°EL
00'89F 00°$8T 00°ESL Wo'Lit) DO0LE'L 00°0L1E
00°9F9°L 0T e8Iy 0T°0FL'STF 0TrET'AL 00°905°96¢ 00°90§™96<
PLLIBRIC ] PIBL1°09E 91 8T CP06LS L] LELEFPT [YNEF [L560°9 00°ZTOFBFELL
PLLIRRICT PO COO LEE G L TLE 69571 L0CECS] 1L LB FEGLE 1L°E60°9 00 cob 8PSLL
00614 E9T T 160750V E FOFY B98¢ 18°BLL°0T D9 i90 8PSt 09999 ¢ 00°S6£PHSE
LLUEET L 6T kG L a0'00T’sl 00°000°¢ 00°00Z°E4 00°00TT1
BEGTEL T90LI6 00°005°91 00005791 00°005'91
BT OFEEY [0'T1T°92C 62°09L°89C (1€£7906°¢) 09°999°CTLE 09'999°€ 00°000°69%
OI'TLTS 88'BEFEC] 86°DE8'8LT] 86°0EE'SL 00°005°€01 00°005 €01
65°6TE°01 $:AUAY 00700801 00°008°01 00°008°01
FOFITIG 0T HEYLED'E PI'6PLRIIE (98°5F9°€) 00°SHETELE 00°€6ETE'E
000
F1BITES0] EEVI6SRET] LECED'I00 p (b4 E6FS) 11026 000°F1 Ll'6ekc 00°L60°F00°FT
LE8E0TE E19TT L8] 00°sLE6EE osTre) 00°00F Tt 00°00% TTT
E0'69T EE CUEA88L STTOPER (gLLes’e) 000000k 00°000°0F1
18°EF8°LST 0E'BEGELS FEF8FEER (00°005°€2 H'vB6°0C8 [T6T¥°C 00°555°+E8
Fl'06T'8C 85'8LL°T0F 069071t 0°691°T6 00°006'8¢€€ 00'006'8EE
69°098°t [ 689°€ST 0070568 E Q0°055°851 00055851
00°008°C1 00°00T°LE 00°000°08 00°000°05 00°000°08
09°€6Z°¢99 5 BEEEIDISTTI 66 16t PLITT §  L10°00E°58) 00°Ta968TEE § 00T69'65TEl &
T (eancdept [CL¢RRY T yenpnyg FRIITENY T maEpng | Ploqumauy T joupRyg
2ANIS0g [eulf [ema0 JEag JoLLg RO

JOBpNEE |UuE ]
3IAL QQUTLITA

6o giavyg

=D nquxy

TI0T '0E AN QIONT HVIAA TYOISLI TFLL HOA
ATAdHIHOS NOSTHYJIN0D AdV.LFDdng
AN TVHINID

(HINOWNOI 0 AINIOD 3HI 30 LN ININOdamwoD v)
LOTHESHI TOOHDS TVNOILLYIOA ALNNOD HLNOWNOW

SIILAIST tI{EDLE [ma ],
S1321g() 2y
S[R3y puT Sa1j00ng
§32[A12§ pasul2n o0
sauz[eg
S331ALIG LI[EIH
FANPUIANT PAANGLISIPLL]

uonsNLIsY] - Mo
UOIINIISY] - SWIRIB0L] |EUGHEIDA |BI0L
UONSTUISUT - SIWRIS01] JBU0IEI0A JEl3adg jmo],
SR2Iq0) Jayig)
syoaqina]
531{00Ng (RIS
$201AI05 PASEYUNJ JNO
53JALIG [EUCTIEINDPT - JEUGISS3j01d POSBUIING
ST ] JO SILIBEG
WONANSY - SWEIB0L] [TU0NEI0A (219545

USHINISU] - SUANL [BUOIRI0 A I8y [m10]
§133180 10
syooqINa],
sardang [2lauan
$22[A12G PaseyaIng a0
$031A13G [EUSHEBINDPF - |EUOISSAJ01] PISTYIINg
UoLaNIISY] 10} S3UTJES 1310
SISIBI ] JO SILIL[YS
UOIDNISU] - SN [SUCHTI0A JUNDay
{ panuTIue ) UOTIALSU]
(panunua;y} asUsdxy] Justmyy
‘(panunue)) ) s3Impuadyyg

- 47 -



- 48 -

98°EECH FE1EEOT] 0C29L°6C1 0£0 00 L9L°6T1 000 00 L9L°6T1 AJLIGIT [00UDE/SAIAINE BIPAJN [BUONEINPY [EI0],
00°5TL 00’0 00°6TL 00°STL 00°STL S19214() I}
L¥'6689 £5°00¢'t 00'00T°11 00°GOT 1T 00°00T°11 S[BHAILA puk sanddng
£6°ELR L0'999'C 0O0PL'E 00oLe 00°0kL'E SAMALSE Pastyittd IOYIG
9t'LEL PAPOEE] OETOLFLL 0E0 00°TOT %I 00°coLbi SaLR[Ry

AIRIGYT [00Y35/521A3G RIpaly |EuopEINPg

PERLAEL 90°cipotl 00 068151 oo 1) 00°060°£51 000 D0°06DESE SAMAIRG [RUOLINNSU] [0 JUDUIADICLW] 810
00'Tet’t 00°608 00 00E’s ©oo0T 1) 00°005°9 0070059 SRl N0
CLEL] £L90T 00°000°T 00°000°¢ 00°000°Z S[ELIIBA puT saladng
007006 000 00°00¢ 00°00§ 00°00S SANAIDE PASTUING NG
60706 [6°666 6T 00'060'0E 00°060°0€ 00°060°0% JUBISISSY [UILI3| ) PUT [RLEIII3G JO SINT[BY
007000°¢ 00 00€°TE 00°008°LE D0'D0S°LE 00°008°LE JJg elotssajold 1agiQ Jo saue|eg
00°008°9L 00°005°9L DD'00S9L 000089 uohnsyj Jo J051aI200g Jo saue(es

1S391A13Y {HUOT)INLISUL JO MAABIACIKEU]

8O LTI O OTRETE 09°CEF SCE (oFTI¥] D0SFRSTE 00'% 00°SHRSTE [B1220§ - SIUAPMIG SA0LAIBE HodANG Ay mo],
000 000 000 000 §133190) 13yl
F9ESS 9E'9E 00°009 00°009 00°009 S{ELANTIY pUE safoang
96'€TR +0'9T 00°058 00058 00°0¢8 5321Adag pastind Jaglgy
EER A TCeeL’ele 09'C86'ECE (Or'Tly) 00°S6E"PTE 00°S6E'+TE H#G [PU01SS3104] 1030 JO sauBfug

{[EraadS - VPG S30IAI3S Hoddng N0

QEE06 b 10°880°60¢"] LE 166 60171 (E1Ci6 5¢) S EL6SFET OSEQ] 00018k i B[Oy - SUAPNLG LN 15YI0) |RI0L,
STTL9L 880CE RTINS L805CT) 0000t 00°001 b 132190 13410
[AIRe:) 68 129°FE [690L° e 1F8IT°L 05°885°LL 05 EGT 00°S8I'LT S1eUAEN pue sarjddng
09°68F°¢1 OF'S10°6E] 00°S05°0F T 00°000°0F 00'S05°001 00'505°001 SA3IAIRg paseqan ] Ao
00°0r 0000588 00°0rL'88 00°01L788 00°0rL 88 Salefug Lalip
£6'668°8C £6'668°8T 6 TR 00°85+'8C 00°85F'8T SIUTISISY [22123]] pug |ELIMRLIOG [0 53UTIES
6i991"'LT 16'€T5°LBO7] Or 066 P11 l09'1£T"E8) §  ODEETo6LE 3 § 00°€TL961°1 5 AJTlg RUOISSIJOIg Iag1)) Jo Saliejeg

IB[MADY - SHUDPRIG MOAANS 15410

{(panunuo) s2INMIpUadX s pANqQUISIpUs]
‘(panunuo;)) asuadsz) Juanny
(panunue) ) sainypuadxy
[PANEDIN]) 1Y T yadpeg SIAJSURI L T jaspng | Poiwpumoony O jaopng
DANISOJ |eurg Lt E1a T 1wy g IO
IIBPRY [uuLg

UM AJUNLIBA

TTOZ "0€ ENAL CIANT UVHA "TVISII THL 401
6J0 €134y FINATHIS NOSIEVINO0D AYV.LIDaNg

=D nauxyg NN TVHINTD

(HINOWNOW A0 XINNOD AU H0 TINA ININCANOD V)
LOTYLSIA TOOHDS TYNOILVI0A ALNNOD HLNOKWNOW



cl'1yen C9F06TicT FLLOEORTT FLOE6 T G0 A9E'ELT T 000 D069ECLTE
9et9 9¢E0T¢Cl L6 95T El 6918°I 00055 11 00°0st°[1
160817V 60°68 Tl 00'0£9°99 00°051°E 00°005°€9 00°00S°E9
BE'EE0L L9toi6l 00'aEgsE 00'0¢ 00°008'$E coo 00°005°SE
L0°1£879C FF6E6 859 [£'04L7589 (6t'9L1) 00°LF6'589 QULrECRY
o 16°L90°6LF'T 1£'890°6LF"1 [£796 00°TLE LY L O0ZLEBLYT
Li bE996] 0666159 CI'P85°808 188°£61°8) 00'8LL018 000 Q0'BLLGIR
ECTILRl L¥FEsT 00005 k1 L00°005°L) 00°000°ZC 00°000°Cc
SESsyt SRPPOLE 00°005° 1t 00°005°S 00°000'9€ 00°00079¢
LIS EEPSIFI C190E'rl £1'908°1 00°005°z1 00°008°T1
LGRS Y| E60I6ET 00°005°8¢ (0000078 L} 00°005"9F 00°005"9r
FLOPO'C GUEEEE 00'000°6 00°000'6 0070006
968 BEENE LTI 00°000°01C 0000001 00°000°00Z 00°0007Q0T
6000001 00’0 00°000°01 l00'000°sE) 0000075 D0°000°ST
OO'SLE1 QOSTIET 00°000°ST 00°000°51 0000001 0000001
ooo0n'T 00°000°8T 00°000°0F 00°000°0% 00°000°0€
LS'685°11 oIy 8t Q000009 00°000°09 0000009
£6'S09°S SBTLIISE QO BLLGOE 00°8LL769¢ D0'8LL'SIE
08 gav 81 90°9%L 9ET 9B P 6CE 580t | 00 PI0bST 007099 00 PEECET
00'6YL8 [ GO 00081 00000°8F 007000781
GE0E6'] 19°69% 00'005'T 00°008°C 00°'008°E
SFPigs £E°EE091 00'099'1T 00°099'iT 00°099 00°000°1Z
96°68 £0°'000°0¢ 00°060°0€ 00°060°0¢ 00°060°0¢
00so1't 98°68E 0] Su'rer 501 980T 00°v9T S01 00927501
00°008™9L 000089, 3 § 000089 g g 00°0059L 5
[ELN TR [EORY T jeapng SIJSUdf, JERITIE ] posqumouy T jeapng
AALISG ] (LU | BUBLO Juay J0e g B30

1aspng |eud
YA DIUBLICA

610 £ 3934g

-0 Hynxy

T10T "0€ ANNL AAANT VIX TVISL] THL M0

FINAAHIS

NOSTHVJNOD ANV LIDANG
(NN TYHIANTD

(FLIGINOI 10 ALNITOD THI 30 IINA INGNOJNOD V)
LO{YLSIA TO0OHDS TYNOLLYI0A ALNNOD HLIOKWNOW

UONENSIUIUPY |00i)3G 2214195 1I000NE [MO],
§173lG() 10
S[eLaiRpy put sanddng
Saotalag paseung 1210
SHIBISIESY [IUS[) PUR [RURIZINIG JO S2LT S
F[UGIOUL,] URSISEY/A[EdIoULL] JO Saur(Rg
USNENSIUIUPY [0S $321AI25 Loddng

UOORISTUILIPY [GIBUSE) S2D{ATAS HoUang [B10]
5321 39 sangj ONSIAGUSK - 304
SAIPUICKT SNOUTHIISIN
SA[LANG (iU
53AING PISTUIINE 1YID
534G pasTYIN,] I3YI0) - 710
UMY [ /SUDHENUNLEWD.)
S301ALNG JBIIUYI3 ], PATOY L]
$20IA13G [BUOISSAJO1] PAsTyAInJ IS0
saagupny
SIIAIAG [UAS]
SALIB[UG

UONTISIUIWPY [112UD) 5a51A198 Hodong

5301AL9G HUNIRIE, [0S [BUBHINNSU] |20 ],
931q0 12PG
S|BLIAITIA PUE S31jddng
$03IAIAG PISTYAN] IO
SJUEISISSY [BILa)0) PUB [RURIIDIG JO SILIT IS
IS [rolssajond 110 Jo sauees
UDRINNEU] J0 I0SIAFIANG O SaUT| RS
15801419 BUILIE2], IS [EUONOTLISY]
‘(panunuoyy} saunnpuadysy paingnsipur)
A(PanuLLDD) ) asuads WAL
((panunueyy) saangpuadxyg

-49-



-50-

9FLH6'SS €E882°01 65°0£L'99 U 69C€EH 00°000°G01 000 00'000°001 spunoif) Jo daaydp) put 5w [mo L
o' ThE'EE £L88L°01 6570499 (iv'eoTee) 60°000'¢el 00°000°001 SAsiAlag pASTHAING 210

SpunoLn) jo daaydp pue ale))

FROLOLSE ] OF 116 FC0°F FEIRBCIHC 190 DiTescl 0025 1°899°6 000 007251 899°6 JUE J& 2IUBIILLITIY PUT HONRISA0) JDYIQ) [0
LESF] 60'998°9¢ 9 lI0Le 9IITE 00°006°tT 00006 €T 103 () 2410
99°111'v01%) FEBREEST'] 00°0087LET'T LD0'00G'ELT) 00°005°TEY'T 00'005'CER'T {AUaMma[ pUS 1EDE] } AllIaUy]
6E'LrL’Ct $8°001°0L1 ECRFRCIT (LL'156781) 00°008°FET 00°008°FET sajjadng |etatan
6C'6FESDI 1L°059°62€ 00°000°SES 00°000°5E 00°000°SEY Az
LETEN £9°891°68 00'009°86 00'009°86 00°009°86 {OTH-E£9T [IUN) LAI2g AUAA01] paselaimg 1910
GO'TOTTT 00°86L°LS 00°000°08 00°000°08 00°000°08 ASEYDIN BT UTYS JDINQ SAPINE PUt pue jo [ejuay
t'eal’s 06709t FeT LEE59°09T LEEs08k 00009 CEL 00009°CTIT $3IJAIDG DUCUTUIR PU Sluday] Bumea])
GO000E 000 00°000°E 00°000°E 00°000°E SAAIAIAE JEILYID ] PUT [RUOISSAJOL] PAsTYIIN]
Fl'o6l'19 STRLYELE] EF89T°CE0T LS ERETLL) 00°TSL'LYIT OUTELLFIT saum[eg

JUEE] JO 2DURLUILIY PUR UOHEISOQ) 33410

EUL01°E9 SO'ler +19 61865118 (18°298°F) 00°196°¢18 oolies 00'059°L08 SAM[IAE [00L2G 507 AUBUSIUIBN S[qTa0[[y [F0],
£1'898°1 8801 E] 005051 QUsTl’L 00'c0s L 000062 s123lq0 1010
STELIT TE'EED'RH L8056 LLISE LI 00'L68°18 00°401 00'0sL 18 safddng jwauan
9L°€90'F91 95°00L'TES Cr'PoL'969 (36°6£1°6T) 00'F0T'9TL 00°0L'8 00°000'81L SaR(AIRE BUBUSILIELY puw Jutsieday Hunrea))

SIH12E,] |OOU5S 10] AIUBUIIUTY PAINbaY

SOBFCLE [ANTIETH R901L LSF Bo6IC5 00 L6F £5¢ 00°LEST 00 096 0sY

PI8IL 98°'18TC 00000 r 000 00°000'% 00000 123k 23410y
1LESS t6 6TYEE'S 00°LECTHOT 0600005 00°LES 66 00°LES™H 60'000°S6 S[eLEAlR pUr SAI[AANg
08°LLUE 0L°CTR'EL G0°000'SL 00°000°1 00°000° L 00°000°tL FA2IAIRE pastyaIng 22010
B9°GLIRLT 89°6L18LT 89'61CT 00°096°LLE 00°096°LLT salicjeg

AHOIDUYD3 |, UDNEILIDE JANTISIEIUPY

SERBYOC B3 L0169 EC 096112 EC595°97 DD$66 FR9 0oo GO CA6'FR9

05t ASEED PLLATR] FLL99 00°000°Z1 C0'000°T] SAIMIPUBEX: SNODLT|[IASIN
6L'T9E [C0L1°8 00°6£5°8 00'5ES°T Q0°000°9 00°000°9 S|eisalziy puE saj[aang
GEGLF L [£96£769 0£7998°08 0£°998°8 00°000°2L 00°000°EL SAGIAIDE PISEIAIN SNOSE[RISIY
00°000° 000 00°000°T 20°000°C G0'000°T SA2IALAG [UIUYIS |, paseyan
00°EL8S 00°5TI°T 00°000°8 {0°000°8 600008 §0lAI3g [RUDISSAFOL paseyung
LO7ESL §  cleltas 6L°0LE E6% & 6LSLES §  00%66'FRS g BO'S66'T8E g SaLIB[LE

S2OLAJDG [RNUa)}

(panuiuoy)) sainspuadsy panqIusipun
‘(pantnuay} asuadxy aans
(panunuo]) samypuadyg
DAMTIN TIELG Janpng SIDJSUEIT, T papng  padaqiiiisuy T jadpng
FANISOF |eun g (REIE] e ) Juaj lolg TR0

1apng [ty
LA 2DULLITA

TLOT '6£ INAL TIANT HVAX TVYDSLI AHL 404
610 £ 103Yg THITIHOS NOSIVAINGD AYV.LIDANY

=D Haquxy NI TVHANTD

(HINOWNOIW 40 AINDOY RiiY 30 LINN INANOIWOD V)
LORLLSIA TOOHDS TYNOLLY20A ALNNOD HLNOWNOIY



11668 ¢18

EECEC/OFLE Fb L6 [RT BE (1L e0TrT) ITHIH ECERE 240061 00 LOLEGS GE
{£0°800° S0P} 61 FCELCIIT S19PEE0L 0T (FEORY G4 T) 05928896 0 0119l QOCITEEa 0L
{96 €BLTOEE) 96 E]LI0E E 000 oo 0oo 000 000
95 1E9°CBE[) 96’ 1EQSRE] 200 00¢
L00'TI9'6LT L) 0OEIYaLT]
L000FS9ER} 00'0FS'9E9
L8°€0F C08 8L F99°LLF0 SORELCRT L {cepl O0'6CI EBTL 000 00 6L ERTL
CLFLTSES BLECTAE] 00005 FLT 00'GOS FLT 00005 PLT
0t'L8L°0% 09°TLL 6Y 00°095°001 00°0eC’001 00°098°001
POEPE'EEY 19°€65°L50°8 SO0LCTI6FE (seal 00 LESTI6Y'S OO'LESTLGKS
SBSPLETE 6T°6L88ET LU'STY09E (ER'16T9) 00'L16'99E O0LI699E
£ 16T T ER'I6TFT EB'l6L9 000081 00000781
99°€E0E FPE996'L 00°000°01 00°000701 00’0 000
LYBFSL £E05F €] 00°000°S1 00° G005 00°000°51
LURDSLE £81E0°LHY 00°000°08F (goroo0'al) 00°000°06% 00°000°06F
6E'ToI 19725192 00 CI99L 00°519°9L 00°519'9L
' 666'19 95°000°88¢€ 00°000°GSF 00°000°05¥ 00°000°05F
oo
000
[ S0 9 62°688't8 00 0b6a'RP1 4o 00 06 8E1 009 00'0F6"8r1
LLFE0T9 6T 58818 [ 5 00°GRe sVl 3 $ 000re 8Kl 5
{FATIETaN} oy Jonpny TIajsunay, T Jagpng  padaquiismy  jompng
HAE0 BuIg |puianQ Juajg lolld [#PIO
1mapny [eorg
s JIUTLIEA
TIOZ 0 ANNF AIANT YVIA TVISE THL 404
630 H IS A HAIHDS NOSIIVJIINOD AYVLIDANd
[-21quyxyg AN TVHINTD

(HIMOWNOI 30 ALNI0D THL 10 TN IRANOJNOD V)
LITHLSIA TOOHIS TYNOLLYDOA ALNAOD HLAOWNOW

35UAAXT JWALND - SUNJIPUIAXT [0
SINPUSNXT PANGLISIPUL] [BIOL
PaIsaphg-uoN [RMoL
SEONNGUIL0D) ALINZAG [1120] JV L Pasmgiay]

SUONNGIALOY) [EPIA] WUAAINIY-150 |V L J0YG-0)

UGIsUSE VAL IBYIG-L0
pAaspng-uon

S)t1aUDE DDA0[OWT [M0]
SIJaUag] 33A0{0NIT 1))
TUBWASINGUIEEY] UGN [
Sl{aUSE P[EIE
UONESUDAWOT) §Uat{o A
uoESUANWO]) JUSWAOI W]
JUDH - SUDHNgLIND.) JUSWANEY Y0
D - SUONBGUIUDD) JUIWAIMSY 1Y)
B[NARY - SUONNQUIND.) JUILIAINY LY10
JRIE - suonnqIuo) Iy 41
SUONNGHIUG) AILINDIS jB1308

s1aUag SaAojdu

527)A12G UonEpodstRL] JUapms [mo],
SI0PUIA - JO0DT DU SWOL] USAsIag URYL 13410
BERIZSEIEEIR LI g
ISA0IAIAG UGHT0UsUR] ], JUApNIS
{(panuuo) SeIMIpUddXT] paInqrIsIpu]
({panunuo) ) asuadxy Juaun
(panugito’)) sasm)ipuadyyg

-51-



£9°TL17901 3 108Tig’l CFPLO8IO] SEPES Fe 00 0P ¥6S 1 [ 00°0FF +65 "1
£8800°2¢ 00068 LLF L8BOVESH LEL0E8LT) 00'6PE ERY 00e 00°6FE£BE
00°9%C'C 00°F% 00700t T 00'GOE'T 00°00EC
EP8EL'T L2719 00°00E'F 00°GOE™ 00'00E't
CLOYSE] PyaIs 00°000°3€ 00'000'8E 00'000'8E
PTYLEE] aFLLTTLL ELE09°681 (£2°'000°LT) 00'FOS'CIT 00P09'TIT
SFLOLS 69'L8S'6TT F1'S6LT°6ET r1'0si1’6e Q0 Sk1'9TT CO'SP19TT
9L°£95'R9 8 LI6FROL 8GCIFECT] PRt Tk 00 EGOEEL [ 000 0O T60 11T
L&'560°5 EGCIL 00808761 [EIGE] 007005°L QO 00% L
S6F0EE SEHOEE (E0°669°1) 00°000°S Q0000°S
GFYoLEl 6T9L0'081 69°061°¢61 (lg'a09°Lt) 00°008°+£Z 00°0087FET
ELELL'LI LT9RY'LE 00°009°6F 000096 00'009°6t
Q009’1 00°09¢’1 00°000°€ 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢
99°6V69E RTTLY1SR F6'1L5°888 PEOBELL 001617118 0071617118
00684 8BS (AT 000 [T 000 00 61485
000 000 000
000 000 000
00'612°8% 00'6[L°8E Q0'61L78C 00°61L°RE
00t 000
oo'o 000 § 000
a0'o 00°0 0co 000 [1filY) Y]
000 000 000
000 000 oo
000 000 00t
000 000 000 000
000 03’0 00'e 000
000 ogo § 000 5
PAnuaEIN) [Enay Taapng SIajSUTA] Janpnyg [EEFENHIEC] OO
DAINSUY [LE [VMBLIQ JBAR J01ag [LR]iM{]

jonpng [ouLf
INA 2DEBLINA

630 L1gg

=D agnxy

TLOT "0F ENNL AIANT IVIA TVISIA JHL HOA
HTINAEHIS NOSEHVAINOD AHVEAIDANY
AN TVHINID

{HINOWNOI SO ALNNOY L IO LN ININGIINGI V)
LITYLSIA TOOHIS TYNOLLYIO0A ALNNOD HLNOKWNOW

SIWTIB01] ATEPUQI3G-1504 {TI0]
§331A125 U0ddNg - SWIZIT0L] AIEPUGIIE-1S0,] {E0]
230 1200
S{EUIITA PUE S31(Udng
$931A19G pastyand I
511J9U3E] 2A0[ULLT] - SID]AIDG {DUOSIZG
5aTES
'523TATIG LOAUNG - SWTIB0,] ATEPUGIST-1S0]

UoLANNSY] - SWTI0L] AIRpU0I3g-150 [H10].
§139300) 5410
SYO0QINA |,
£01{04ANg |RIatsn
$301A0G PISEY2NJ JOYI()
§231A125 [BIIULI3], PUT [EUOISSAI0L] PasTaIng
SI2V3 L, JO SILWRS

JOTANISU] « SIERIBOL] AIBPUOAS-1S0]

>.nmw—.—o —m:ﬂﬂu - mE:u_ﬁEUn—Hm julag,
ﬂﬁ_mu::m.u_u Umﬂﬂ_UhEnm
SIUALLRAQIIL] pUd pler]
staalqQy Jauigy
$33IAISG LONNOSUOT)
5aDIA105 [RINID], PUR [RUOISSAJ0s] PISEYDIN It
'SO3]AIDG UDNANISUD]) PUR LOLISIbAY SanHj1sin,]

Juswdingyy [Eo,
(swmdoig 11y) sjootag jeoadg
wn.u_.?._um _.mmﬁn_mﬂ.—u
2Ly SEASTLE + JUDLEIA by
UDNENSUIPY {00435 - Wawmdmby
UONENSIWPY JEUA0) - §221AI25 toddng
JEIS |EUOIONISL] - 2014025 Hoddng

SUNUPUIANZ PANGLNSIPUN
uawdinbg

AE[ING JeiIdE])
(panunuoy)) SUmIpEadys

-52-



9ERFO T TLFRFEET LOEECPEL I0EEF 9 000018zt 000 00°001°8TT
00°STk DOSL 007005 007005 00°00%
OfELY SBEEL'E PLLODE 9L°Z61° 1) 00°008°F 00°008°¢

CEOLIEL £EOLIES £E£9L1'T 00°000°11 006'000°11
00051 00°059°L 00°008°1 00°008°1 000081

05 6FCEE 056511 0S6vE'S 00600001 00°000°011
st Islcr £0°C90°9F] Tricasl QS Z0L ELI [T 1950 00 6o8 £9

00°0 000 (00°00sC) 0000S°§ 00°008°€
90'cTa’l $ERTTT 19°ZElF 000087} 19°069°E 19259 00°000°E
00°00T'5T 10°299°F6 LzoRsll 10°¢98°611 00°0 on'a
TFRT0'S1 LOTLL6F 6661 FS £ 6POVES 5 00'6SE'8S g §  00'6esEgs

{aAnvdaN) [ELTERY faapag T smpsuTays T jeapng | parwmnody  C joapeg
AABIS0 Y [LE | [euldLI() ELLFIUEE L e

yapng jeuny
34 BT

60 g BRNS

=D Hoiyxy

TIHT 08 ANNLC QAANT ¥VAA TTVOSLE AL HOA
THIHITHOS NOSIIVJINOD AV.LIDAE

GNNA TYHIANTD

(HINOANOW 10 ALNNOD FHL A0 LINIT LNANOJINOD V)
LONLLSH TOOHDS 'TYNOLLYO0A ALNNOD HENOKWNOIW

XX7-7Z§ |US JIEUNS [l

UOHANISU] - [BI0T - TUIISAT [RUONEIDA [MO]

5123150 DO
SHODGIND ],
525|ddng jrIauan

5301128 PAsTUAIN 2410
5134383 [ JO SILIB[US
UORININSH] - [290°] - BUIIAAT [PUONEI0A

UORINNSU| - [00YIS JSWWNG [#0],

5199100 1210
saljaang JeIsuan

uoLiINISU] 10 SAURES JAGID
SIAYIRI ], JO SDUREEY
UDNABISE] ~ [00YISG JALIUNE

[ooyay |etaaeg
(PANURUO.)) SOINEPURANT]

-53-



00 1G4 £oL

{dvVD) spur [eiuawusasony sad asuereg pung

Jua A juannyy

siseq JVVO U0 pazitiiodan 1ou sjuocied pry apeg s
(YYD} SISWIICTIS SPUn.g {ZIHAILLIIACT) O1 UDFIBI[19U0D3Y]

pPouHssEU(]

snjcing s5a0N7] J0) BALASSY - PA)ILSY
FALISTY DITEIIUIT - PAIOINISIY

1350y fende)) - paIoIsay

saamipuadxa 1224 Juanbasqns 0] pareudisac] - SNEUNG $SA0XT] 3] DAINSAY - PIIDLISSY
(110Z-010C PIV M1T1S PPV} S2In1IpUdND 1224 JUanbasqns s0f pasuudsia] - paudissy

g
(00'831°CLL)
CO0'eEE LES G
SOPERILIT
0 CILPEL'T
00°000°006°1
62°0L0°806
t6°0£0'199
00°gel 11f
90°F61'sE8
9FTEG'E1S g
9t'986'16L"Y § TOUEO6LESEIES  POIRGCFLT S 001 § (Z8'8TH'I8ET) (Tg'a5€0T) §  OCIPEOILY
FEOITLLLL QE01FLEL L OE0IF LTI L . SE0IMLETL
9P'986°16LY FY8ESOIFT (TRLTFIRET) 00’1 (T8'8Ty¥"18E°C) (T8'65£°0T) (00'690°19£7T)
JEE04L°E (E6TOC L) {LEB06RL} IE006°E) LO0'000°52) 00’0 L00°000SLY
E0LE FLE0LE 000 300
(1£'906'8L) LEE'D06'8L) €906t} L00000°6L) L00°D00SL)
S0'E8T8RLY LETSLERY'T L€ 128°C0E™E) gL’ (Z8'8TH90E°T) {T@ese0T) (00°690°98T°T)
St ot0 $96 9080 66t 6E L1E¢/0E9F 0F TIE o6t} L8 1867997 0F 8 65E70C 00 ET9 9t 0Ot
PELBIOG] £L09LLEl6T] [0 P96 CEl T Sb Sl 'BET T[98 PR 1 i9°C59 00961 BRI
ECEOR( BTl Ele CELLEIE 16'BL8°68 00°L6RCCT 000 O0'LoRSTC
LB FI L& O8] P EPT 181 st el [ ago Q046716
vl 0oLl [T 126751) 00°000°E 00000 |
£9°004°1 900471 (9g°66L) 0070052 00°005°C
IFTITI1E IFTiTIE (6S°L8L7E) 00°000°6E 00°000°5€
F0PLLI FObL LI PYELTO 00729911 00°L99°11
124 §  88'€09°6T1 &  TEPOYRLL § CErLElR §  000E9L¥ $  000e%LY
TOADTdIN] [REiEY Trpng SIDJSURIY, anpng PonRIa FERTHITE
JANISD ULy el Jeag doLLf [e1210
JIBRNG (EUL]

LM 2DTVIINA

640 613348

1-3 nanyxy

TI0Z 0€ ANNF QAANT dVIA TYISH THL HOA

FINAHEHIS NOSTHVENOD AUV.LIDANY

ANN TVHANID

{(HLTONNOIW 0 ALNAO0D THL 40 EIND ININOJINOD ¥}

$

LOTHISIA TOOHDS TYNOLLVIOA ALNNOD HLAOWNOIW

saunppuadxa 1ead JWanbasqns 10) payendsis(] - paudissy
S2OURIQIUNOUT PUD-TB3 L JOF PANIUHLL))

uonundeaay

0f Sunf ‘saouu[eg pua,]

1 A[nf "s2duB[eg pung

$as[] BUILELL] J8Y)) U SUNIIPUSANT {JApUp] A0
$a31n0¢ HUIBUTIL] JLI0) PUT SSMUAATY JO (AILIIBYICT )/ESIIXT

(595(1} S92IN0G TUIALRUL] JSYIC) [MOL
PUN] A2[AIAG [QILINFLE] WDL] JAJ5UETY
SPUR,] A31AIG [ELUDIU] PUR 325A135 POG, O Jajsuel ]

:(595[}) SAUNOG FUUEUIS IO

SINGIPUANXF (JPUM] )A0) SINUIATY JO (AJUDI0I] A )5S0V

SURKPUSANT [H0L
510025 (219245 [WOL

[2307 - TUIUAAT [EUDHUA0A [RIO,
S30[A15G 1OAONG - [EI0°] - FUTUSAT [CUONTA0A [Fle],

S121q(y 2L
S[EUMRK Pul SoOang
$IIAIDG PASEYUN] 10

113G JAA0JUULT - SIATAIAG [FUOSIZ]

SILE[RS

'S2T1AL3 LOGING - [B207 - TURIZAT [EUONTI0A

'5100Y2g [1dadg
(panunue) ) saamipuadxy

-54-



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
GENERAL FUND
EDUCATION JOBS FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Exhibit C-1a

Balance Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
Support services:
Personal services - employee benetits $ 299645.00 $ 299,645.00 % -
Total Support Services $ 299.645.00 $ 299,645.00
Total Expenditures $ 299.645.00 § 299,645.00 % -
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

BUDGE-TO-GAAP RECONCILIATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Exhibit C-3

Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures.

Sources/inflows of resources:
Actual amounts {budgetary) "revenues" from the
budgetary comparison schedules.

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures and the
related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized per GAAP standards in the
current year previously recognized for budgetary purposes.

The last State aid payment is recognized as revenue for
budgetary purposes and diifers from GAAP which does not

recognize this revenue until the subsequent year when the
State recognizes the related expense (GASB 33).

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds.

Uses/outflows of resources:
Actual amounts {budgetary basis) "total outflows”
fram the budgetary comparison schedule.

Differences - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year supplies are received
far financial reporting purposes.

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds.
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General Fund

Special
Revenue Fund

$ 41,985,780.63

None

£88,713.00

(775,168.00)

$ 1.011,381.28

None

None

None

$ 41,899,334.63

$ 1,011,381.28

$ 390,448,028.06

None

$ 1,011,381.28

None

$ 39,449.028.06

% 1,011,381.28




OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS



PROPRIETARY FUND -

ENTERPRISE FUND



BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL. DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Interfund Receivable

Total current assels

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

-61-

Food Service

56,101.96

11.89
795.11
2,985.18

59,894.14

716,232.39
286,414.54

419,817.85

479,711.89

419,817.85
58,894.14

479,711.99

Exhibit G-1



Exhibit G-2

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL. DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
PROPRIETARY FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Food Service
OPERATING REVENUES
Local Sources
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs % 12,474.29
Total operating revenues $ 12,474.29
CPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales $ 78,906.31
Depreciation 47,211.51
Total operating expenses $ 126,117.82
Cperating income/{loss) 3 (113,643.53)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
State sources:
State school lunch program 3 257.64
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 12,471.68
National breakfast program 5,806.72
Total nonoperating revenues $ 18,576.04
Income/{loss) before contributions and transfers 3 (95,067.49)
Operating transfers:
Inter fund - operating transfer in/(out) 78,908,31
$ (16,161.18)
Contributed Capital - Equipment, Net 160,429.82
Change in net assets $ 144,268.64
Total net assets - beginning 335,443.35
Total net assets - ending 5 479,711.99
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BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by/{Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
State Sources
Federal Sources
Transfer from General Fund

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances - Beginning of Year

Balances - End of Year

Reconcitiation of Operating Income/(Loss} to Net Cash

Provided/{Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Gain/(Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash Pravided/(Used)

by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change In Assets and Liabilities:
(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) by Operating Activities

-B63 -

Exhibit G-3

Food Service

12,474,289
{79,508.31)

(67.032.02)

300.66
18,389.51
75,000.00

83,680.17

26,658.15

29,443.81

56,101.96

(113,643.53)

47.211.51

(600.00)

46,611.51

(67,032.02)




PROPRIETARY FUND -

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND



Exhibit G-4

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(CEASED OPERATIONS)

County Of Monmouth

Department
of Human Department of
Services Corrections
Operating transfers:
Operating transfer out - general fund $ 3,400.03 $ 303.35
Change in net assets (3,400.03) (303.35)
Total net assets - beginning $ 3,400.03 5 303.35

Total net assets - ending {ceased operations)

-64 -



Exhibit G-5

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

{CEASED OPERATICNS)
County Of Monmouth
Department
of Human Department of
Services Corrections
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Transfer to General Fund 3 (3,400.03) & (303.35)
Net Cash Provided by/{Used for) Financing Activities (3,400.03) {303.35)
Balances - Beginning of Year 3 3,400.03 $ 303.35

Balances - End of Year (ceased operations)
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Exhibit H-2

BOARD OF EDUCATION

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

COMBINING STATENMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Plan Members
Contribution
Interest Earned
Total Contributions

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS

Unemployment Claims
Scholarships Awarded

Total Deductions
Change in Net Assels
Total Net Assets - Beginning of the Year

Total Net Assets - Ending of the Year

-B7 -

Unemployment
Compensation Private Purpose
Trust Trust Fund

42,084.61
$  13,500.00

13.99
42,098.60 $  13,500.00
42,098.60 $  13,500.00

49,012.23
$  17,500.00
49,012.23 $  17,500.00
(6,913.63) $  (4,000.00)
8,321.11 18,895.07
1,407.48 $  14,895.07
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ASSETS

Stafford Loans
Pell Grant

Total Assets

Exhibit H-5

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIOANL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)

GRANT/LOAN PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30, 2012

5 3,967.89 § 174780.00 & 175,750.77 $ 2,997.12
266.41 203,323.77 203,590.18

$ 4,234.30 5 378,103.77 % 379,34085  § 2,997.12

Interfund Payable - General Fund 4.234.30 $ 378,103.77 % 379,340.95 $ 2,997.12

Total Liabilities

5 4,234.30 5 378.103.77 % 379,34095 % 2,887.12
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Exhibit H-6

BOARD OF EDUCATION
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIOANL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
CONTRACTOR RETAINAGE PAYABLE
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deletions June 30 2012
ASSETS
Cash 5 324210.55 3 101,001.27 % 126,463.57 $ 208,748.25
Total Assets $ 324,210.55 3 101,001.27 % 126,463.57 $§  298,748.25
Retainage Payable $ 324,210.55 $ 101,001.27 & 126,463 57 3 29674825
Total Liabilities $ 324210.55 ] 101,001.27 % 126,463.57 & 298,748.25
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MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule - June 30, 2012

New Jerssy School Boards Association Insurance Group - Commerclal Package Policy Property

PROPERTY
BLANKET REAL E PERSONAL PROPERTY
BLANKET EXTRA EXPENSE
BLANKET VALUABLE PAPERS AND RECORDS
CONTINGENT LIABILITY
DEMOLITION COST/INCREASED COST CONSTR.
FIRE DEPARTMENT SERVICE CHARGE
ARSON REWARD
POLLUTANT CLEANUP AND REMOVAL
SUBLIMITS:
FLOOD DEPENDENT ON ZONE
EARTHQUAKE

TERRORISM

DEDUCTIBLE REAL PERSONAL/EXTRA EXP/PAPERS
FLOOD
FLLOOD DEDUCTIBLE DEPENDENT ON ZONE
ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING
BLANKET HARDWARE/SOFTWARE
BLANKET EXTRA EXPENSE
COVERAGE EXTENSIONS:
TRANSIT
LOSS COF INCOME
TERRORISM INCLUDED IN PROPERTY
DEDUCTIBLE
FLOCD
FLOQD DEDUCTIBLE DEPENDENT ON ZONE

BOILER & MACHINERY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT PER ACCIDENT FOR
PROPERTY DAMAGE AND EXTRA EXPENSE
SUBLIMITS:
PROPERTY DAMAGE
OFF PREMISES
BUSINESS INCOME
EXTRA EXPENSE
SERVICE INTERRUPTION
PERISHABLE GOGDS
DATA RESTORATION
CONTINGENT BUSINESS INCOME
DEMOLITION
QRDINANCE OR LAW
EXPEDITING EXPENSES
EXTRA EXPENSES HAZMAT CLEANUP
NEWLY AQUIRED LOCATIONS
TERRORISM
DEDUCTIBLES:
PER ACCIDENT PROPERTY DAMAGE
12 HOURS PER ACCIDENT FOR BUSINESS
iNTERRUPTION/EXTRA EXPENSE
CRIME COVERAGE
PUBLIG EMPLOYEE WIFAITHFUL PERFORMANCE
THEFT/DISAPPEARANCE OF MONEY & SECURITIES
COMPUTER FRAUD
DERUCTIBLE-COMPUTER FRAUD
BOARD SECRETARY BOND
BOARD TREASURER BOND

-84 -

§

300,000,000
50,000,000
10,000,000

10,000,000
10,000
10,000

250,000

10,000,000
50,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

5,000
500,000
10,000

5,000,000
included

25,000
10,000

1,000
1,000,000
500,000
10,000

100,000,000

included
100,000
included
10,006,000
10,000,000
500,000
100,000
100,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
500,000
25,000
included

5,000

100,000
10,000
25,000

500

100,000

300,000

per oceurrence

per occurrence

per aceurrence/annual aggregate
annual aggregate

pef occurrence

annual aggregate

Per ocourrence
per building contents
per occurrence

per occurience

per accurrance
per oceurrence

per building contents

par memberiper ocouzrence

PER OCCURANCE

Exhibit J-20

Sheet 10f2



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule - June 30, 2012

Exhibit J-20
Sheet 2 of 2

New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group - Commercial Package Policy Property

DEDUCTIBLE - BOARD SECRETARY 5 500
DEDUCTIBLE - BOARD TREASURER 1,000
COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY
BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 16,000,000
BODILY INJURY FROM PRODUCTS & OPERATIONS 16,000,000
SEXUAL ABUSE 16,000,000
17,000,000
PERSONAL INJURY & ADVERTISING INJURY 16,000,000
16,000,000
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY 16,000,000
1,000
PREMISES MEDICAL PAYMENTS 10,000
5,000
TERRORISM 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE
LIABILITY - ALL OWNED AUTOS
COMBINED SINGLE LIMITS FOR BODILY INJURY &
PROPERTY DAMAGE 16,000,000

UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS
UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORISTS

1,000,000

15,000
30,000

5,000

PERSONAL (NJURY PROTECTION 250,000
MEDICAL PAYMENTS 10,000

5,000
TERRORISM 1,000,000
PHYSICAL DAMAGE (SCHEDULED VEHIGLES ONLY)
COMPREHENSIVE 1,000
COLLISION 1,000
HIRED CAR PHYSICAL DAMAGE (75,000 LIMIT) 1,000
REPLACEMENT COST not covered

GARAGE KEEPERS IS INCLUDED

combinad single limit

annuai occurrence

per occurrence -
annual pool aggregate

annual pceurrence

per occurrence -
per ocourrence/annual aggregate

per elaim deductible

per accidant -
limit per person -
per occurrence/annual aggreg: -

per accident -
private passengear vehicles

a|l other vehiclas

badify injury per person -
badity injury per accident -
proparty damage per vehicle -
including pedeastrians

for privale passaengers cars

for all other vehicles -
per occurrence/annual aggregate

deductible
deductible -
deductible

FEDERAL INSURANCE CO. (CHUBB) - TEMPORARY TGTAL DISABILITY EXCESS WORKERS COMP. -

MAXIMUM BENEFIT 1.000
MAXIMUM PERICD 51
N.J SCHOOL BOARDS ASSCC. INSURANCE GROUP-WORKERS COMPENSATION
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
ZURICH INSURANCE COMPANY - ENVIRONMENTAL RESFONSE
COMPENSATION AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

LiMIT OF LIABILITY 1,000,000
RETENTION AMOUNT 25,000
GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY OF NEW YORK - HULL POLICY
HULL 179,000
HULLP &I 1,000,000
MUTUAL MARINE OFFICE, INC. - EXCESS INDEMNITY FOR VESSEL
EXCESS PROTECTION & INDEMNITY/EXCESS COLLUSION LIABI 20,000,000

NJ SCROOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION INSURANCE GROUP- SCHOOL LEADERS

ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
COVERAGE A
LIMIT OF LIABILITY 16,000,000
DEDUCTIBLE 5,000
COVERAGE B
LIMIT OF LIABILITY 100,000
300,000
DEDUCTIBLE 5,000

-85-

per week
weeks -

per incident
per incident

each policy period
each claim

each claim
each policy period
each ciaim
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SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY Exhibit K-1

She

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Sheet 10f2
550 BrRoAD S1sERT, 117711 FrLoor A6 WEST MAIN STREST, SUTTE 3043
NEWARK, NJ. 07 102-15E3 FrErsorn, N.J.07728-2201
PHONE (D7) GR24-G100 PruoNe(732) 780-2600
FAx (D73} 6G24-01101 Fax (732) 780-1030

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND CTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Monmouth County Vocational School District
County of Monmouth
Freehold, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the Monmaouth County
Vocational School District, a component unit of the County of Monmouth, County of Monmouth,
State of New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report
thereon dated December 19, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and
Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Monmouth County Vocational School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financiat reporting. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Monmouth County Vocational School District's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Monmouth County Voeational School District’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Monmouth County Vocational School District's internal conirol over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www. samuelklelin-cpa-rma.com



Exhibit K-1
Sheet 2 of 2

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the
Monmouth County Vocational School District's basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of basic financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompiiance or
other matters that the required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department
of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended salely for the information of the Board of Education of the Monmouth
County Vocational School District and its management, the New Jersey State Department of
Education (the cognizant audit agency) and other federal and state awarding agencies and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

_W ///J%é//%,

Gerard Stankiewicz
Cert[f:ed Public Accountant
blig8thool Accoyntant #912

Freehold, New Jersey
December 19, 2012
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOQUNTANTS
550 BROAD STREET, 11TH F1L.0oOR 36 West Maix STREET, SUITE 303
NEWARKE, N.J. 07102-45:43 FREEIOLD, N.I. 07 728-2201
Pronr(D73) 624-6100 Proxm (732) 780-26800
TFax {073 a24-G101] Fax (732) 780-10:30

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL OR STATE PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 04-04

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Monmouth County Vocational School District
County of Monmouth
Freehold, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education, a
component unit of the County of Monmouth, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey
with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement, and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Monmouth County Vocational, Board
of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's
Results Section of the Accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal and state programs is the responsibility of the Monmouth County Vocational Board of
tducation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Monmouth County
Vocational Board of Education’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance,
Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04,
“Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid". Those
standards, OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04, require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance reguirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education's compliance with
those requirements and periorming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit
does not provide a legal determination on the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education's
compliance with those requirements.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com



Exhibit K-2
Sheet 2 of 3

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL OR STATE PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMBE CIRCULAR LETTER 04-04

(CONTINUED)

In our opinion, the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education, in the County of Monmouth,
State of New Jersey complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the
year ended June 30, 2012,

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education is responsibie for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the Monmouth County Vocational Board of Education's
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
its major federal or state programs in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance, and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Monmouth County Vocational School District's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
caorrected, on a timely basis.

QOur consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to material weaknesses, as
defined above.
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR FEDERAL OR STATE PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OME CIRCULAR A-133 AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR LETTER 04-04

{CONTINUED)

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of Education of the Monmouth
County Vocationai and its management, the New Jersey State Department of Education and
other federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be

and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Certified Public Accountant

Gerard Stankiewicz
Licensed Public Sghool Accountant #912

saMUEL i EIN & COMPANY

Freehold, New Jersey
December 18, 2012
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Exhibit K-5
Sheet {1 of 2

MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state award aclivity of the Board of Education, Monmouth
County Vocational School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 (A) to the
Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from federal
and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included on the schedules of expenditures of federal awards
and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in
the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These
bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of Siates, Local Governments, Non-Profit Organizations and New
Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial
statements.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP
basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general
fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance, in which,
certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year
whereas for GAAP reporting revenue is not recognized until the subseguent year or when
expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis
with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.5.A.18A:22-4.2. For GAAP purposes that
payment is not recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the last two (2) (of twenty (20)) state aid payments in the subsequent year. The
special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A18A22-42.
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Exhibit K-5
Sheet2 of 2

MONMOQUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile fram the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of
$86,455.00 for the general fund. See Nofe 1 (the Notes to Required Supplementary
Information} for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the meodified accruat basis of
accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statemenis on a GAAP basis as
presented on the following page:

Fund Federal State Total
General $ 29964500 $ 11,025,751.96 $§ 11,325 396.96
Special Revenue 920,594.02 14,350.26 934 944,28
Food Service 18,278.40 297.64 18,676.04
Trust and Agency - -
Pell 203,590.18 203,590.18
Stafford 175,750.77 175,750.77

$ 161785837 $ 11040,399.86 % 12658,258.23

4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the
related federal and state financial reports.

5. FEDERAL AND STATE LOANS OUTSTANDING
The District had no federal or state loans outstanding.
6. OTHER

There were no revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Frogram
represent current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF Pension Contribution and Post Retirement Medical Contributions
represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the
State for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2012.
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Exhibit K-6

Sheet 1 0f2
MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Ungualified, dated
Type of auditor's report issued: December 18, 2012
Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Material weakness{es) identified? yes X no
2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal contrel over major programs:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
Unqualified, dated
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: December 19, 2012
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section .510(a) of Circular A-133? yes X no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.048 Carl D. Perkins Secondary and Post Secondary
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000.00
Auditee gualified as low-risk auditee? X  yes _ no
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Exhibit K-6

Sheet2 of 2
MONMOCUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOQUTH)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)
State Financial Assistance
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B Programs: $352518.42
1. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
Ungqualified, dated
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: December 19, 2012
Internal Control over major programs:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X no
2. Significant deficiency({ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weakness(es): yes X none reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJ OMB Circular Letter 04-047 yes X no

Identification of major programs;

GMIS Number Name of State Program
12-495-034-5120-088 Special Education Categarical Aid
12-495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
12-495.034-5120-085 Adjustment Aid
12-495-034-5095-002 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security

Section Il - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
Nona

Section lll - Schedule of State Financial Assistance
Findings and Questioned Costs
None

- 08 -



MONMOUTH COUNTY VOCATIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
{A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MONMOUTH)
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011:

There were no findings for the year ended June 30, 2011,
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